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(ii) [Reserved]

(5) Forest Service. (i) Civil penalty for
willful disregard of the prohibition
against the export of unprocessed timber
originating from Federal lands, codified
at 16 U.S.C. 620d(c)(1)(A), has a
maximum of $1,152,314 per violation or
three times the gross value of the
unprocessed timber, whichever is
greater.

(ii) Civil penalty for a violation in
disregard of the Forest Resources
Conservation and Shortage Relief Act or
the regulations that implement such Act
regardless of whether such violation
caused the export of unprocessed timber
originating from Federal lands, codified
in 16 U.S.C. 620d(c)(2)(A)(i), has a
maximum of $172,869 per violation.

(iii) Civil penalty for a person that
should have known that an action was
a violation of the Forest Resources
Conservation and Shortage Relief Act or
the regulations that implement such Act
regardless of whether such violation
caused the export of unprocessed timber
originating from Federal lands, codified
at 16 U.S.C. 620d(c)(2)(A)(ii), has a
maximum of $115,231 per violation.

(iv) Civil penalty for a willful
violation of the Forest Resources
Conservation and Shortage Relief Act or
the regulations that implement such Act
regardless of whether such violation
caused the export of unprocessed timber
originating from Federal lands, codified
in 16 U.S.C. 620d(c)(2)(A)(iii), has a
maximum of $1,152,314.

(v) Civil penalty for a violation
involving protections of caves, codified
at 16 U.S.C. 4307(a)(2), has a maximum
of $25,184.

(6) [Reserved]

(7) Federal Crop Insurance
Corporation. (i) Civil penalty for any
person who willfully and intentionally
provides any false or inaccurate
information to the Federal Crop
Insurance Corporation or to an approved
insurance provider with respect to any
insurance plan or policy that is offered
under the authority of the Federal Crop
Insurance Act, or who fails to comply
with a requirement of the Federal Crop
Insurance Corporation, codified in 7
U.S.C. 1515(h)(3)(A), has a maximum of
the greater of: The amount of the
pecuniary gain obtained as a result of
the false or inaccurate information or
the noncompliance; or $14,947.

(ii) [Reserved]

(8) Rural Housing Service. (i) Civil
penalty for a violation of section 536 of
Title V of the Housing Act of 1949,
codified in 42 U.S.C. 1490p(e)(2), has a
maximum of $244,957 in the case of an
individual, and a maximum of
$2,449,575 in the case of an applicant
other than an individual.

(ii) Civil penalty for equity skimming
under section 543(a) of the Housing Act
of 1949, codified in 42 U.S.C.
1490s(a)(2), has a maximum of $44,206.

(iii) Civil penalty under section 543b
of the Housing Act of 1949 for a
violation of regulations or agreements
made in accordance with Title V of the
Housing Act of 1949, by submitting false
information, submitting false
certifications, failing to timely submit
information, failing to maintain real
property in good repair and condition,
failing to provide acceptable
management for a project, or failing to
comply with applicable civil rights laws
and regulations, codified in 42 U.S.C.
1490s(b)(3)(A), has a maximum of the
greater of: Twice the damages USDA,
guaranteed lender, or project that is
secured for a loan under Title V suffered
or would have suffered as a result of the
violation; or $88,411 per violation.

(9) [Reserved]

(10) Commodity Credit Corporation.
(i) Givil penalty for willful failure or
refusal to furnish information, or willful
furnishing of false information under of
section 156 of the Federal Agricultural
Improvement and Reform Act of 1996,
codified at 7 U.S.C. 7272(g)(5), has a
maximum of $19,435 for each violation.

(ii) Givil penalty for willful failure or
refusal to furnish information or willful
furnishing of false data by a processor,
refiner, or importer of sugar, syrup, and
molasses under section 156 of the
Federal Agriculture Improvement and
Reform Act of 1996, codified at 7 U.S.C.
7272(g)(5), has a maximum of $19,435
for each violation.

(iii) Civil penalty for filing a false
acreage report that exceeds tolerance
under section 156 of the Federal
Agriculture Improvement and Reform
Act of 1996, codified at 7 U.S.C.
7272(g)(5), has a maximum of $19,435
for each violation.

(iv) Civil penalty for knowingly
violating any regulation of the Secretary
of the Commodity Credit Corporation
pertaining to flexible marketing
allotments for sugar under section
359h(b) of the Agricultural Adjustment
Act of 1938, codified at 7 U.S.C.
1359hh(b), has a maximum of $14,206
for each violation.

(v) Civil penalty for knowing violation
of regulations promulgated by the
Secretary pertaining to cotton insect
eradication under section 104(d) of the
Agricultural Act of 1949, codified at 7
U.S.C. 1444a(d), has a maximum of
$17,501 for each offense.

(11) Office of the Secretary. (i) Givil
penalty for making, presenting,
submitting or causing to be made,
presented or submitted, a false,
fictitious, or fraudulent claim as defined

under the Program Fraud Civil
Remedies Act of 1986, codified at 31
U.S.C. 3802(a)(1), has a maximum of
$13,947.

(ii) Civil penalty for making,
presenting, submitting or causing to be
made, presented or submitted, a false,
fictitious, or fraudulent written
statement as defined under the Program
Fraud Civil Remedies Act of 1986,
codified at 31 U.S.C. 3802(a)(2), has a
maximum of $13,947.

John Rapp,

Director, Office of Budget and Program
Analysis, United States Department of
Agriculture.

[FR Doc. 2024—-12542 Filed 6-6—24; 8:45 am)]
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DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE

Rural Housing Service

7 CFR Part 3550
[Docket No. RHS-23-SFH-0017]

Single Family Housing Section 504
Home Repair Loans and Grants in
Presidentially Declared Disaster Areas
Pilot Program

AGENCY: Rural Housing Service, USDA.

ACTION: Notification; update and
recission.

SUMMARY: The Rural Housing Service
(RHS or the Agency), a Rural
Development (RD) agency of the United
States Department of Agriculture
(USDA), is providing notification that
due to funding constraints it is
rescinding one of the waivers being
tested under the Section 504 Home
Repair Loans and Grants in a
Presidentially Declared Disaster Areas
(PDDAsS) pilot program, as published in
the Federal Register on July 18, 2023.
DATES: This recission is effective June 7,
2024.

FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT:
Anthony Williams, Management and
Program Analyst, Special Programs,
Single Family Housing Direct Loan
Division, Rural Development, 1400
Independence Ave., Washington, DC
20250, U.S. Department of Agriculture,
Email: anthonyl.williams@usda.gov;
Phone: (202) 720-9649.

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION:

New Section 504 Pilot Regulatory
Waivers Update

On July 18, 2023, the RHS published
the Single Family Housing Section 504
Home Repair Loan and Grants in
Presidentially Declared Disaster Areas
Pilot Program notice in the Federal
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Register (88 FR 45809). The purpose of
the notice was to waive four regulatory
requirements for the Section 504 Home
Repair Loans and Grants in a
Presidentially Declared Disaster Areas
(PDDAs) pilot program. The Agency’s
intention was to evaluate the existing
regulations and remove regulatory
barriers to assist eligible applicants in
PDDAs to improve the program usage
for very low-income homeowners that
are seeking to repair their damaged
homes that are in PDDAs. The Agency
also published a correction notice dated
September 6, 2023 (88 FR 60883). In the
September 6, 2023, notice, the Agency
stated that the pilot was subject to the
availability of funds.

As stated in the original notice and
the correction notice, the Agency has
continued to monitor the effectiveness
of the pilot and the availability of funds.
The Agency has now determined that
there are not sufficient funds available
for this program to keep all the waivers
under the pilot in place. The
Consolidated Appropriations Act, 2024
reduced the program level for Section
504 grants to $25,000,000 (in
comparison to $32,000,000 in the
Consolidated Appropriations Act, 2023)
and rescinded $28,000,000 of the
unobligated balances that carried over
from prior year appropriations. With the
lower program level and no available
carryover funds, the waiver to the age
requirement is no longer supportable
and is rescinded. With the rescission of
this one waiver, all applicants for the
Section 504 Home Repair Grant Program
must be 62 years of age or older at the
time of application, according to 7 CFR
3550.103(b). Complete applications
received prior to the date of this notice
can be processed with the age
requirement waiver.

The remaining regulatory waivers
established for the Section 504 PDDAs
pilot program will remain in place and
are anticipated to continue until July 18,
2025. This pilot remains subject to the
availability of funds.

Eligibility Requirements

Eligible participants in the Section
504 program must abide by the statutory
requirements as set forth in 7 CFR part
3550. Eligible PDDAs (individual and
public assistance) can be found on the
FEMA website at: https://
www.fema.gov/disaster/declarations.

Non-Discrimination Statement

In accordance with Federal civil
rights laws and USDA civil rights
regulations and policies, the USDA, its
mission areas, agencies, staff offices,
employees, and institutions
participating in or administering USDA

programs are prohibited from
discriminating based on race, color,
national origin, religion, sex, gender
identity (including gender expression),
sexual orientation, disability, age,
marital status, family/parental status,
income derived from a public assistance
program, political beliefs, or reprisal or
retaliation for prior civil rights activity,
in any program or activity conducted or
funded by USDA (not all bases apply to
all programs). Remedies and complaint
filing deadlines vary by program or
incident. Program information may be
made available in languages other than
English. Persons with disabilities who
require alternative means of
communication to obtain program
information (e.g., Braille, large print,
audiotape, American Sign Language)
should contact the responsible Mission
Area, agency, staff office; or the 711
Federal Relay Service. To file a program
discrimination complaint, a
complainant should complete a Form
AD-3027, USDA Program
Discrimination Complaint Form, which
can be obtained online at https://
www.usda.gov/sites/default/files/
documents/ad-3027.pdf, from any
USDA office, by calling (866) 632—9992,
or by writing a letter addressed to
USDA. The letter must contain the
complainant’s name, address, telephone
number, and a written description of the
alleged discriminatory action in
sufficient detail to inform the Assistant
Secretary for Civil Rights about the
nature and date of an alleged civil rights
violation. The completed AD-3027 form
or letter must be submitted to USDA by:

(1) Mail: U.S. Department of
Agriculture, Office of the Assistant
Secretary for Civil Rights, 1400
Independence Avenue SW, Washington,
DC 20250-9410; or

(2) Fax: (833) 256—1665 or (202) 690—
7442; or

(3) Email: program.intake@usda.gov.

USDA is an equal opportunity
provider, employer, and lender.

Joaquin Altoro,

Administrator, Rural Housing Service.
[FR Doc. 2024-12559 Filed 6—6—24; 8:45 am]
BILLING CODE 3410-XV-P

DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION

Federal Aviation Administration

14 CFR Part 39

[Docket No. FAA-2024-1476; Project
Identifier AD-2024-00090-T; Amendment
39-22761; AD 2024-10-15]

RIN 2120-AA64

Airworthiness Directives; Gulfstream
Aerospace Corporation Airplanes

AGENCY: Federal Aviation
Administration (FAA), DOT.

ACTION: Final rule; request for
comments.

SUMMARY: The FAA is adopting a new
airworthiness directive (AD) for certain
Gulfstream Aerospace Corporation
Model GVII-G500 and GVII-G600
airplanes. This AD was prompted by a
report of a failed rear engine mount
discovered during a preflight walk-
around due to visible engine
misalignment. This AD requires
inspecting the left and right engine
mount points within the pylons and
engine nacelles for non-conforming
hardware installation, repairing the
engine mount points if necessary, and
revising the existing aircraft
maintenance manual (AMM) to include
revised procedures for engine removal
and installation. The FAA is issuing this
AD to address the unsafe condition on
these products.

DATES: This AD is effective June 7, 2024.
The Director of the Federal Register
approved the incorporation by reference
of certain publications listed in this AD

as of June 7, 2024.
The FAA must receive comments on
this AD by July 22, 2024.

ADDRESSES: You may send comments,
using the procedures found in 14 CFR
11.43 and 11.45, by any of the following
methods:

e Federal eRulemaking Portal: Go to
regulations.gov. Follow the instructions
for submitting comments.

e Fax:202-493-2251.

e Mail: U.S. Department of
Transportation, Docket Operations, M—
30, West Building Ground Floor, Room
W12-140, 1200 New Jersey Avenue SE,
Washington, DC 20590.

e Hand Delivery: Deliver to Mail
address above between 9 a.m. and 5
p.m., Monday through Friday, except
Federal holidays.

AD Docket: You may examine the AD
docket at regulations.gov by searching
for and locating Docket No. FAA-2024—
1476; or in person at Docket Operations
between 9 a.m. and 5 p.m., Monday
through Friday, except Federal holidays.
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